

### **OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE**

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 30 MAY 2012 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER, BROWFORT, DEVIZES.

#### **Present:**

Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Tony Deane, Cllr Peter Doyle, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Peter Hutton, Cllr Ricky Rogers, Cllr Judy Rooke, Cllr Jonathon Seed and Cllr Carole Soden

### Also Present:

Cllr Jane Scott OBE, Cllr John Brady, Cllr John Noeken, Cllr Pip Ridout, Carlton Brand, Ian Gibbons, Michael Hudson and Maggie Rae

### 1 Membership

The membership of the Committee was noted.

## 2 Apologies

Apologies were received from Cllr Nigel Carter and Cllr Christopher Newbury.

#### 3 Election of Chairman

Cllr Trevor Carbin was elected Chairman for the ensuing year.

#### 4 Election of Vice-Chairman

Cllr Tony Deane was elected Vice Chairman for the ensuing year.

### 5 **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest received.

#### 6 Chairman's Announcements

The CfPS Annual Conference was to be held on 12-13 June 2012. The Committee members were asked to inform the Chairman should they wish to attend.

## 7 Public Participation

There was no public participation.

#### 8 Terms of Reference

The Committee discussed the Terms of Reference as agreed by Full Council on 15 May, details of which were provided with the agenda. A revised structure chart and summary of improvements and developments were also circulated.

In highlighting the changes of the revised arrangements, the Vice Chairman clarified that the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee would have two functions; to undertake scrutiny of corporate issues and to manage the overall overview and scrutiny work programme.

Although the Committee had overall responsibility, it was acknowledged that the select committees were the experts in their individual areas and there was therefore an expectation that each would propose review and policy development topics for final approval by the Management Committee.

It was understood that the subject of work programme responsibility had also been raised at the Remuneration Panel meeting held on 29 May 2012. Clarification was provided that a detailed review on member remuneration would be undertaken in late Autumn.

Ensuing discussion also included stakeholder representation where it was noted that it would rest with the individual committees to make these appointments, other than those required by statute.

The number of task group activities undertaken by each committee was also discussed. In noting that a focus of future activity would be primarily policy development based, it was recognised that a place would always remain for these activities to allow specific and focused scrutiny on key areas where required.

The Leader of the Council addressed the Committee and confirmed her strong belief that good scrutiny was critical for sound decision making. The Leader expressed the need to ensure all councillors were engaged in the process and, particularly, in relation to policy development. To help achieve this members of scrutiny, officers and the Executive would need to work together.

Thanks were given to the Leader and Corporate Director for attending and giving their support for the changes.

#### Resolved:

To note and endorse the Terms of Reference and developments and improvements for the function as a whole for the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee as approved by Full Council on 15 May 2012.

# 9 Establishment of Budget Task Group

The Committee was asked to agree the establishment of a standing Budget Task Group and to appoint membership to it accordingly. Details of the Terms of Reference were included within the agenda.

In deciding the membership of the Group, the Committee was asked to bear in mind that it would need to ensure that meetings were meaningful with areas of key interest identified in advance to ensure appropriate Executive and Officer attendance to aid discussion.

The Cabinet member for Finance, Performance and Risk confirmed that a series of training courses via the Councillor Development Group had been arranged to aid understanding of the budget setting process. An invitation for further training sessions to help steer the programme of work undertaken by the Group was offered should the Committee feel this would be of benefit.

A number of councillors had expressed preliminary interest in becoming members of the Task Group.

It was also noted in discussion that its first meeting should coincide with the availability of the Revenue Outturn report for 2011/12 and first Budget Monitoring report for 2012/13. The first meeting would also focus on scoping future arrangements.

### Resolved:

To establish a standing Budget Task Group whose membership would be; Clirs Nigel Carter, Pip Ridout, Alan Hill, Mark Packard, Trevor Carbin and Mike Hewitt. The Chairman would be elected at its first meeting.

## 10 Legacy Issues and Future Work Programme

The Committee was asked to discuss and agree on an approach to dealing with priority legacy issues arising from previous working arrangements and the development of a future work programme. A discussion document was circulated with the agenda.

It was proposed that the new select committees should review the work programmes from the previous arrangements to ensure there remained a link to the Council's priorities in it's Business Plan and that potential items for inclusion

within the new Overview and Scrutiny single work programme had clear justification as to why they should be included.

The attending Cabinet member for Resources stressed the importance of focusing on the council's priorities with clear timeframes set from the outset to undertake these reviews.

In discussing the proposed approach, it was agreed that each Select Committee would consider key legacy issues and develop future work pertinent to the terms of reference of each Committee in consultation with Cabinet and CLT/ELT. Proposed items would then be considered by the Management Committee for potential inclusion in the overview and scrutiny single work programme.

This work was likely to be undertaken by the chairs and vice-chairs of the select committees when elected in time for initial consideration by the Management Committee at its next meeting on 17 July 2012.

It was also accepted that the chairman and vice-chairman of the Management Committee would need to undertake the same exercise in respect of corporate topics.

#### Resolved:

To agree the approach discussed above for the consideration of legacy and future work programme topics.

### 11 Urgent Items

There were no urgent items for discussion.

## 12 Date of next meeting

The next two meeting dates of the Management Committee will be held on:

17 July 2012 6 September 2012

(Duration of meeting: 2:00pm – 3:25pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Sharon Smith, of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 718378, e-mail <a href="mailto:sharonl.smith@wiltshire.gov.uk">sharonl.smith@wiltshire.gov.uk</a>

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115